
1

EDPC
Agenda Item No. 6B



Economic Development & Port Miami Committee
Meeting Minutes

Lynda Bell (8) Chair; Javier D. Souto (10) Vice Chair; Commissioners Jose "Pepe" 
Diaz (12), Barbara J. Jordan (1), and Juan C. Zapata (11)

Thursday, April 10, 2014 2:00 PM Commission Chambers

Stephen P. Clark 
Government Center
111 N.W. 1st Street
Miami, FL  33128CLERK'S SUMMARY OF

Lynda Bell, Jose "Pepe" Diaz, Juan C. Zapata.

None.

Javier  D. Souto 2:30:00 PM.

Barbara J. Jordan.Members Excused:  

Members Late:  

Members Absent:  

Members Present:

None.Members Absent County Business:

MINUTES PREPARED BY:1

Karen Harrison, Commission Reporter, (305) 375-
1296

Report:

INVOCATION AS PROVIDED IN RULE 5.05 
(H)

1A

The following staff members were present: 

-Deputy Mayor Jack Osterholt;
-Assistant County Attorney Jess McCarty;
-Assistant County Attorney Monica Maldonado;
-Deputy Clerk Jovel Shaw; and
-Deputy Clerk Karen Harrison

Report:

ROLL CALL1B

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE1C

Page 1 of  15 Meeting Key 3503 - Printed on 8/1/2014

2



Thursday, April 10, 2014
Economic Development & Port Miami Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

REASONABLE OPPORTUNITY FOR THE 
PUBLIC TO BE HEARD AS PROVIDED IN 
RULE 6.06

1D

Later in the meeting, Chair Bell opened the floor 
for anyone who wished to speak.  There being no 
persons wishing to speak, Chair Bell closed the 
floor.

Later in the meeting, at the request of Chair Bell, 
it was moved by Commissioner Diaz that the 
agenda for today’s (4/10) meeting be set.  This 
motion was seconded by Commissioner Zapata 
and upon being put to a vote, the motion passed by 
a vote of 3-0; (Commissioners Souto and Jordan 
were absent).

Report:

SPECIAL PRESENTATION(S) 
(SCHEDULED TO BEGIN AT 1:30 PM)

1E

Presented
140721

1E1
Rebeca Sosa

PRESENTATION OF SERVICE AWARDS TO THE 
FOLLOWING EMPLOYEES:

ANA T. GISPERT - ITD - 30 YEARS
PATRICIA PALMER - SFETC - 30 YEARS

Service Awards

DISCUSSION ITEM(S)1F

Page 2 of  15 Meeting Key 3503 - Printed on 8/1/2014

3



Thursday, April 10, 2014
Economic Development & Port Miami Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

Presented
140611

1F1

Commissioner Zapata commended the Miami-
Dade Beacon Council (Beacon Council) for the 
project “One Community, One Goal (OCOG),” 
and he noted this discussion would help identify 
how this County could collaborate more closely 
with the Beacon Council to succeed in creating 
more jobs in this community.  He asked for 
clarification regarding how the Beacon Council 
allocated resources for the OCOG project and 
whether this would evolve over time; and 
regarding the work plan and metrics used to 
measure its success, and performance.  He also 
inquired how this Board could contribute to 
enhance OCOG’s work and attract other 
businesses to this community.  Commissioner 
Zapata mentioned his interest in how the 
infrastructure could be strengthened to make 
Miami-Dade County more appealing to businesses 
because there was a need for a clear vision for the 
future.

Mr. Larry Williams, Chief Executive Officer 
(CEO), Beacon Council, presented a PowerPoint 
presentation on the OCOG initiative, noting this 
was a five-year strategic plan and community-
wide effort that provided a unified vision to create 
an environment where significant job creation 
could occur with a focus on new higher-paying 
jobs in key target industries.  Mr. Williams 
explained that education had been identified as 
the foundation of OCOG.

Mr. Joe Vanchek, Vice President of the Beacon 
Council continued with the presentation, noting 
the OCOG initiative’s primary focus was creating 
a better business environment for a better quality 
of life.  He emphasized the need for support to 
reach these goals.  He presented the following 
topics:
 -Budget – Funding (financial partners)
 -2014 Scope of Work
 -Background – The Study, 2011 (collaborative  

efforts – resulted in 80 recommendations)
 -Background – Timeframes 
 - Overview – Community Engagement

                       Education
                      Targeted Industries

                                 Aviation

Juan C. Zapata
DISCUSSION ITEM REGARDING A ONE COMMUNITY 
ONE GOAL BUDGET PRESENTATION

Discussion Item

Report:

Page 3 of  15 Meeting Key 3503 - Printed on 8/1/2014

4



Thursday, April 10, 2014
Economic Development & Port Miami Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

                                 Creative designs
                                 Hospitality and Tourism
                                 Information Technology
                                 Life science and 

Healthcare
                                International Banking 

and Finance
                                Trade and Logistics

Dr. Irma Becerra-Fernandez, Vice President, 
Office of Engagement, Florida International 
University (FIU), thanked the EDPMC members 
on behalf of President Rosenberg, FIU, and she 
presented the work performed by the OCOG 
Academic Leader’s Council (ACL), which was 
mentioned in the PowerPoint presentation under 
the sub-heading Education.  She noted the two-
fold mission of the ACL was to foster, implement, 
and sustain an effective educational eco-system 
comprised of Pre-K through College education; 
and to work collaboratively with the civic and 
business communities to contribute to this 
County’s economic development and growth 
focusing on the seven targeted industries identified 
by OCOG.  Dr. Becerra-Fernandez said that ALC 
was an advocate for the FIU college students and 
for this County at the State level.

Dr. Becerra-Fernandez pointed out that college 
graduate students were relocating because of the 
unavailability of high paying jobs in the area.  She 
noted ALC’s intent was to address this issue and 
retain the intellectual capital so students would 
remain residents and contribute to the local 
economy.  Dr. Becerra-Fernandez said that ALC 
had created a regional talent-development 
network that will provide students with meaningful 
work experience through internships aligned with 
OCOG’s seven targeted industries.  She described 
the steps needed to accomplish this, including 
developing the technological infrastructure to 
match potential employers with students in 
particular fields of studies; working closely with 
industry partners to ensure that their needs were 
met; and shaping the curriculum to reflect the 
current industry trends.  

Dr. Becerra-Fernandez noted FIU received a 
Challenge Grant totaling $100,000 from the 
Miami Foundation as an initial start-up for the 
program; however, the requirement to obtain this 
funding includes securing financial support from 
industry partners to match funds through the 
Challenge Grant.  Ms. Becerra-Fernandez 
mentioned some of the current partners who made 

Page 4 of  15 Meeting Key 3503 - Printed on 8/1/2014

5



Thursday, April 10, 2014
Economic Development & Port Miami Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

the financial commitment, including 
Commissioner Zapata. Additionally, the Beacon 
Council was able to secure a $35,000 grant from 
the People Improving Communities through 
Organizing (PICO) Foundation for a total of 
$60,000, which meant that the remaining funds 
needed totaled $40,000 to complete the Challenge 
Grant, she noted.  Dr. Becerra-Fernandez noted 
Miami Foundation had agreed to partially release 
the funds based on the matched funds, thus 
allowing FIU to hire a coordinator for this 
program by July 1, 2014.  

In conclusion, Dr. Becerra-Fernandez said that 
these efforts would create a stronger workforce of 
professionals in key industry sectors, improve the 
climate for local businesses and industries, and 
improve the lively-hood of FIU students who 
continue to contribute to Miami-Dade County.  
She pointed out that this initiative was historic 
because the Presidents of the higher education 
institutions of Miami-Dade County, and the 
Beacon Council as the economic development 
leadership of this County, for the first time 
collaborated to stem the talent drain and 
strengthen the future of the community.

Mr. Bill Talbert, Chief Executive Officer (CEO), 
Greater Miami Convention Visitor’s Bureau 
(GMCVB), appeared before the EDPMC members 
and provided an overview and highlights of the 
hospitality and tourism component. 

Mr. Vanchek provided an overview of the 
following components of OCOG and noted a 
series of reports were available on the OCOG 
website:
 -Emerging Leaders
 -Community Outreach

Commissioner Zapata commended the 
collaborative efforts made by the Beacon Council 
and the GMVCB regarding this program.

In response to Commissioner Zapata’s inquiry 
regarding how OCOG planned to address 
economic development countywide and not just in 
the urban core, Mr. Larry Williams indicated that 
although the Beacon Council was a part of the 
OCOG initiative, the Beacon Council was working 
daily toward economic development for this 
County.

Commissioner Zapata noted once he was elected 
he reviewed this program to identify an economic 

Page 5 of  15 Meeting Key 3503 - Printed on 8/1/2014

6



Thursday, April 10, 2014
Economic Development & Port Miami Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

development plan for Commission District 11.  He 
noted FIU’s location was beneficial to his 
commission district; however, after conducting 
research, the numbers reflected that only six 
percent of the residents west of the turnpike 
worked within that community, while 94 percent of 
the residents commute to work outside of the area.  
Commissioner Zapata emphasized the importance 
of dealing with transportation issues and of 
identifying ways to bring jobs closer to the 
residents.

Mr. Williams noted OCOG’s specific targeted 
industries were located across the entire County, 
and although it was not an inclusive list of 
industries, it was a list that had been prioritized by 
consultants; and if these industry sectors grew, it 
would benefit the entire County.  He indicated that 
this was the approach that many economic 
development organizations took.  Mr. Williams 
referred to his discussions with Commissioner 
Zapata regarding the potential areas of 
opportunity.  He said that he wanted to ensure that 
expanding businesses would benefit these areas.  

Responding to Commissioner Zapata’s series of 
questions, Mr. Williams noted a targeted industry, 
such as Information Technology, could thrive in 
any area; it was simply a matter of where the 
businesses preferred to be located.  He indicated 
that there were ongoing discussions with FIU 
regarding a plan to grow those industry sectors 
countywide, but the decision would ultimately be 
based on the preference of that industry.  

Commissioner Zapata pointed out that the Board 
and the Administration had an obligation to 
represent the entire County on multiple issues, 
such as socio-economic or mobility issues.  He 
stated that with good planning there should be the 
ability to bring in more jobs, and the Beacon 
Council should play a greater role in providing 
some guidance on community activities this 
County could implement to attract various types of 
industries.  He asked for some input regarding 
Tamiami Airport, and noted Commissioner Moss 
shared his concerns.  Commissioner Zapata 
mentioned the collaboration between Sweetwater 
and FIU, and asked how these efforts could be 
enhanced, and how the County’s economy could 
be diversified without relying only on tourism and 
trade.  He noted the County’s per capita GDP was 
10 percent below the United States’ average and 
asked about the strategy and planning processes 
required to increase the County’s income levels.  

Page 6 of  15 Meeting Key 3503 - Printed on 8/1/2014

7



Thursday, April 10, 2014
Economic Development & Port Miami Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

Commissioner Zapata said that after conducting a 
comparable research with other similar cities, 
Miami-Dade County under-performed in all areas, 
including per-capita income, within the past five 
years since the recession.  He asked about 
strategies that would have an impact in moving 
forward.

Mr. Williams offered to meet with Commissioner 
Zapata to discuss further his concerns.  He 
reiterated that he and his staff wanted to ensure 
that all areas of concern were addressed.  He 
noted he examined the general trends, which 
indicated that in some cases Miami-Dade was out-
pacing the national recovery rate.  Mr. Williams 
stated that the Beacon Council’s focus was to 
reached out to the decision-makers. He said that 
the Beacon Council recently hosted 12 site 
selectors from around the country, which resulted 
in an opportunity to tell the story regarding Miami-
Dade’s ability, strengths, and assets, from a 
business perspective.  

Responding to Commissioner Zapata’s inquiry 
regarding how this Board could assist the Beacon 
Council, Mr. Williams highlighted the need for 
infrastructure, as well as a transparent and 
predictable regulatory environment.  He also 
emphasized the need to maintain talent, while the 
Beacon Council ensures that Miami-Dade 
County’s story is told around the country and the 
world.

Commissioner Zapata commended the efforts 
made by educational institutions and he noted the 
two largest areas for job creation were the 
hospitality and retail industries.  He pointed out, 
however, that the numbers did not tell the whole 
story, noting although 30,000 jobs were generated 
yearly, he was advised by the County Economist 
that the median yearly salary in retail was 
approximately $28,600, which was insufficient to 
make a decent living in Miami-Dade County.  
Commissioner Zapata said that the County needed 
to identify a strategy to generate higher paying 
jobs and employment opportunities that provide 
good salaries, due to the increased cost of living 
within this County. 

Mr. Williams noted the targeted industries 
outlined in today’s (4/10) meeting represent jobs 
in higher income brackets and this was part of the 
focus for every OCOG project. 

In response to Commissioner Zapata’s comments 

Page 7 of  15 Meeting Key 3503 - Printed on 8/1/2014

8



Thursday, April 10, 2014
Economic Development & Port Miami Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

and questions regarding how the performance of 
this County was measured holistically, Chair Bell 
pointed out this was a two-fold question, which 
included OCOG as well as the status of this 
County as a whole.  

Commissioner Zapata said he concurred with the 
comments made by Chair Bell, noting the Beacon 
Council was basically the County’s economic 
development agency; and he was interested in the 
big picture.  He said this County Commission 
needed to have an understanding of who was 
responsible for economic development in this 
community and who should be held accountable. 

Mr. Williams assured the EDPMC members that 
the Beacon Council’s approach to economic 
development in the County was from a holistic 
point of view.  He noted Commissioner Zapata 
referred to statistics that were prepared at the 
macro-economic level, and the work performed by 
the Beacon Council and the OCOG was at a more 
tactical level from a countywide perspective.  

Mr. Jaap Donath, Senior Vice President of 
Research and Strategic Planning, Beacon 
Council, appeared before the EDPMC members 
and explained that it had an internal committee, 
the Economic Roundtable, which included County 
staff, and experts in real estate, trade, and 
tourism, which met on a quarterly basis to review 
the numbers from a macro-economic level to 
address various questions on a larger scale.

Discussion ensued between Commissioner Zapata 
and the Beacon Council members regarding the 
County’s job creation performance, measurable 
outcomes and responsibilities in order to generate 
higher-paying jobs; and the role of the County, the 
Beacon Council and other partners.

Following further discussion, Mr. Bill Talbert 
appeared before the EDPMC members and 
explained that the hospitality sector was a pipeline 
and the fastest way for workers to secure higher-
paying jobs.

Discussion ensued between Commissioner Zapata 
and the Beacon Council members regarding the 
salaries for entry-level jobs and the median salary 
for workers in the County; and how to increase 
salaries significantly.

Commissioner Zapata pointed out that upon 
examining the figures for the new jobs, the created 

Page 8 of  15 Meeting Key 3503 - Printed on 8/1/2014

9



Thursday, April 10, 2014
Economic Development & Port Miami Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

the median point was approximately $300 above 
the County’s median income level.  He said that 
while this was good, he would have preferred for 
the median point to be a few thousand dollars 
above the County’s median income level, as over 
time this would have a significant cumulative 
effect.  

Commissioner Zapata noted he wanted to ensure 
that during his time of serving in office he would 
support and promote policies that would make a 
significant impact on those salaries.

Deputy Mayor Jack Osterholt noted the 
importance of realizing that group of people, 
included County staffs, whose major job was to 
market this community, and who were reaching 
out daily to companies that could potentially be 
drawn to this County.  He commended Mr. Larry 
Williams on his efforts and pointed out that the 
Beacon Council had improved by 100 percent.  He 
pointed out that County staff and the Beacon 
Council did not create jobs; rather, they marketed 
the County to encourage companies to establish 
themselves in this community.  Deputy Mayor 
Osterholt said that unfortunately County 
Government had been losing jobs, which was why 
the economy was not operating as expected by the 
public because while private sector budgets were 
increasing, the County budget was decreasing.  He 
emphasized that making this community attractive 
to companies nationally and internationally was 
the focal point of the Mayor’s Office and staff was 
working tirelessly to accomplish this.

Chair Bell concurred with both comments made by 
Commissioner Zapata and Deputy Mayor 
Osterholt because she believed that often the 
County had to move out of the way so businesses 
could flourish.  

Deputy Mayor Osterholt pointed out that the 
reason people might want to move their business 
to other states, such as Texas, rather than remain 
in Miami-Dade, was because other places 
provided incentives to attract businesses, which 
was important to recruiters.  Additionally, he 
stated that it was also crucial to determine how to 
keep businesses that have been recruited to this 
County, which was an important part of the staff’s 
job.   

Discussion ensued between Commissioner Zapata 
and Deputy Mayor Osterholt regarding how to 
make the County a better product that could be 

Page 9 of  15 Meeting Key 3503 - Printed on 8/1/2014

10



Thursday, April 10, 2014
Economic Development & Port Miami Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

sold at a higher price, to create higher value.

In response to Commissioner Zapata’s inquiry 
regarding the Beacon Council’s legislative goals 
for 2014, Ms. Ivette Arango O’Doski, Vice 
President, Government and Community Relations, 
Beacon Council, noted a primary goal was the 
reauthorization of the Enterprise Zone Program, 
which the County designated as a priority because 
the County received over 50 percent of the benefits 
from that statewide program.  She also said that 
the Beacon Council worked directly with 
Enterprise Florida and tracked any legislation 
related to incentives.  

In response to Commissioner Zapata’s question as 
to whether any of the legislative goals of the 
Beacon Council were in support of educational 
institutions, such as Florida International 
University (FIU) or Miami-Dade College, Ms. 
Arango O’Doski indicated that Miami-Dade 
College and FIU currently had a bill for 
additional funding, of which the Beacon Council 
was supportive.  

In conclusion, Commissioner Zapata asked 
whether the Beacon Council made any 
recommendations regarding the best use for the 
County’s funding totaling $75 million from 
Governmental Obligation Bonds (GOB) for 
economic development. 

Mr. Jaap Donath said he believed that the Deputy 
Mayor was more knowledgeable; however, he 
noted, the Beacon Council had worked with some 
companies that expressed interest in certain areas 
within Miami-Dade County, including Opa Locka, 
during the time when the economic development 
funding was considered.  However, this project 
never materialized because of a discontinued 
partnership, nor had any of the other projects 
discussed been implemented, noted Mr. Donath

Commissioner Zapata pointed out that the Beacon 
Council played an important role in the economic 
development of Miami-Dade County and he 
suggested that they be invited to address this 
Board more often.  

Commissioner Diaz commended Commissioner 
Zapata for his inquiries, noting the struggle 
Commission District 11 had in attracting 
businesses; but on the other hand, Commissioner 
Diaz noted his, Commission District 12 had a 
number of growing industries, as well as military 

Page 10 of  15 Meeting Key 3503 - Printed on 8/1/2014

11



Thursday, April 10, 2014
Economic Development & Port Miami Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

and other activities. He commended Mr. Williams 
and his team, noting their collaborative efforts 
with the County staff to attract new businesses to 
the County.  He indicated that he believed 
Commissioner Zapata wanted some guidance on 
developing more jobs in his commission district, 
and how the Beacon Council could assist.  
Commissioner Diaz mentioned his area of interest 
was international, and his plans to travel to South 
Korea on a trade mission, which changed to a 
governmental mission to identify ideas that could 
be implemented in Miami-Dade County, as the 
gateway of this hemisphere.  He pointed out that 
foreign business owners have visited Miami-Dade 
County to hire local residents to operate their 
business while traveling to and from Central and 
South America.  Commissioner Diaz commented 
on the efforts made regarding the Miami Port to 
ensure that the ships and tunnel were operating 
well, as this would help create more jobs.  

Commissioner Diaz commended Mr. Bill Talbert 
for his work with regard to Miami-Dade’s 
branding, and for his efforts to ensure that visitors 
were aware of the value and highlights of this 
County.  He noted he concurred with his colleague 
that more of these discussions were needed to 
identify ways for the commissioners to work with 
the Mayor’s Office and the Administration to 
attract more businesses to this community.  
Commissioner Diaz pointed out that the military 
had become a major financial component for this 
community that was growing and was needed for 
economic development.  He noted he supported 
any initiative that would help to improve the 
ongoing relationship with the Beacon Council.  

Commissioner Souto referred to his past 
experience and interest in specializing in 
economic development during his time serving in 
the senate.  He noted the importance of economic 
development and the need for involvement from 
every commissioner, including elected officials, 
because the State was dependent on trade.

Commissioner Souto said that over the years his 
involvement has been in a number of economic 
development initiatives, such as the Miami 
International Agriculture, Horse and Cattle Show, 
which he invited the commissioners to attend.  He 
commented on the number of visitors from Central 
and South America that participated in the show, 
which was one of many events that took place in 
Miami-Dade County, aimed to improve the 
County’s economic situation.  Commissioner 

Page 11 of  15 Meeting Key 3503 - Printed on 8/1/2014

12



Thursday, April 10, 2014
Economic Development & Port Miami Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

Souto recommended a study conducted by the 
Economic and Social Council that reflects the 
need to diversify from the tourism industry and to 
create medium and small-scale industries in this 
County.  

Commissioner Souto reminded the committee 
members of the annual event, the “Mayor of the 
Hemisphere Conference,” held in June, which 
attracts visiting families from all over the world.  
He noted this event was created by the County 
Commission, which designated Florida 
International University (FIU) to oversee it.  
Commissioner Souto pointed out that although it 
was difficult to measure the impact of these 
projects,they all contributed to this County’s 
economic development..  

Chair Bell commended Mr. Williams and his team 
for their work and thanked them for the different 
approach that has been adopted within the last 
year, such as their open door policy.  She said she 
realized that it was impossible to meet everyone’s 
expectations, and she understood that everything 
could not be accomplished at once.  Chair Bell 
pointed out that not every issue should be 
addressed by the Beacon Council, such as 
weighing in on college and tax referenda or the 
issues concerning FIU because those groups had 
lobbyists already representing them.  She noted 
this discussion related to the economic 
development of this County; therefore, the 
questions and observations were fair.  She said 
that after reading the mission and goals of the 
Beacon Council, she had a better understanding 
of, and appreciation for its work.

Presented
140612

1F2
Juan C. Zapata

DISCUSSION ITEM REGARDING A STATUS REPORT  
ON ONE COMMUNITY ONE GOAL

Discussion Item

PUBLIC HEARING1G

COUNTY COMMISSION2

Page 12 of  15 Meeting Key 3503 - Printed on 8/1/2014

13



Thursday, April 10, 2014
Economic Development & Port Miami Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

Withdrawn
Mover: Diaz
Seconder: Zapata
Vote: 3-0
Absent: Jordan, Souto

140782
2A

Sally A. Heyman
RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE COUNTY MAYOR OR 
MAYOR’S DESIGNEE TO PROVIDE A REPORT TO THE 
BOARD WITHIN 30 DAYS LISTING ALL NEW 
CONSTRUCTION OR RENOVATIONS WHERE A 
CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY WAS ISSUED AFTER 
JANUARY 1, 2013 WITH AN ESTIMATED MARKET 
VALUE OF $5 MILLION OR GREATER AND PROVIDING 
THE LOCATION, ESTIMATED MARKET VALUE, AND 
ESTIMATED TAXES DUE TO THE COUNTY THIS TAX 
YEAR

Resolution

Page 13 of  15 Meeting Key 3503 - Printed on 8/1/2014

14



Thursday, April 10, 2014
Economic Development & Port Miami Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

The motion that this matter be 
Forwarded to BCC with a favorable 
recommendation failed.
Mover: Bell
Seconder: Zapata
Vote: 1-3
No: Souto, Zapata, Diaz
Absent: Jordan

140118
2B

Assistant County Monica Maldonado read the 
foregoing proposed ordinance into the record.

Chair Bell relinquished the Chair to 
Commissioner Diaz.

It was moved by Chair Bell that the foregoing 
proposed ordinance be forwarded with a 
favorable recommendation to the Board of County 
Commission.  This motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Zapata and opened for discussion.

Commissioner Diaz noted although he supported 
the sponsor’s intent in putting forth the foregoing 
item, he disagreed that it should be permissible for 
an item to be reconsidered if the initial motion 
resulted in a tie vote. He said that the item could 
be considered at the next meeting or from a 
prevailing side; this was the existing process and 
it was effective.  He stated that to allow the 
commissioners to vote again on the same item 
would make the process more complex.  

Commissioner Zapata concurred with 
Commissioner Diaz, and said he still had some 
questions regarding this proposal, so he too was 
not in support of the foregoing item.

Commissioner Souto concurred with 
Commissioners Diaz and Zapata on the item.

Hearing no further questions or comments, the 
Committee members proceeded to vote on the 
foregoing proposed ordinance.

Sally A. Heyman
Jean Monestime,

ORDINANCE RELATING TO THE RULES OF 
PROCEDURE OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS; AMENDING SECTION 2-1 OF THE 
CODE OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA TO 
PERMIT RECONSIDERATION OF ITEMS RESULTING IN 
A TIE VOTE; AND PROVIDING SEVERABILITY, 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE

Ordinance

Report:

DEPARTMENT3

Page 14 of  15 Meeting Key 3503 - Printed on 8/1/2014

15



Thursday, April 10, 2014
Economic Development & Port Miami Committee

Meeting MinutesCLERK'S SUMMARY OF

COUNTY MAYOR4

COUNTY ATTORNEY5

CLERK OF THE BOARD6

REPORT(S)7

ADJOURNMENT8

Hearing no further comments or questions, the 
Economic Development and Port Miami 
Committee meeting adjourned at 3:29 p.m.

Report:

Page 15 of  15 Meeting Key 3503 - Printed on 8/1/2014

16


